METROPOLITAN NASHVILLE-DAVIDSON COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION LICENSING COMMISSION

Minutes of
December 20, 2011

The Metropolitan Nashville-Davidson County Transportation Licensing Commission
(the “Commission”) met in regular session on this date at the Metropolitan
Courthouse. The Commissioners present were Chair Helen Rogers and
Commissioners Sal Hernandez, Sam Patel, Tom Turner and Curt Wallen (5). Also
attending were Metro Legal advisor Jenny Howard and Brian McQuistion, Director-
Executive Secretary to the Commission.

Chair Helen Rogers called the meeting to order. She led the Pledge of Allegiance
and read the Notice of Appeal statement, advising of the right to appeal decisions of
the Transportation Licensing Commission.

The minutes of the November 15, 2011 meeting were approved.

ANNUAL TAXICABS PUBLIC HEARING, CONTINUED

Chair Helen Rogers stated that she had not been present for the November 15
meeting. She confirmed with the other Commissioners that presentations by
companies and public comment had been received at the November public hearing
concerning applications for new certificates and additional taxicab permits for current
certificate holders. She asked Commissioners if they were interested in receiving
additional public comment; no Commissioner expressed an interest in doing so.
Chair Rogers stated that the following applications had been received.
e Applications for new company certificates:

o Volunteer Taxi — 80 permits

o Green Cab, Inc. — 50 permits

o Green-lite Taxi Cab Service, Inc. — 20 permits

e Applications from current certificate holders for additional vehicle permits:

o Checker Cab - 40 additional permits

o Taxi USA of TN d/b/a Allied Cab — 26 additional permits

o Taxi USA of TN d/b/a Nashville Cab — 10 additional permits

o Taxi USA of TN d/b/a Diamond Cab/1-800-TAXICAB — 4 additional

permits

Commissioner Sam Patel stated that Volunteer Taxi had lowered its request to 60
permits. Chair Rogers stated that the Commission would consider this lower
number.
Commissioner Tom Turner asked if all of the required information had been
submitted with the applications. Director McQuistion stated that all applications had
been complete, except for the Green-lite Taxi application, which did not meet the
requirement for a certified financial statement. He noted that the applicants intended



to try to raise money from investors later. The director stated that the co-owners of
the company were unable to be present at this meeting, noting that Mr. Mazza had to
be out of town for a funeral but was available to answer questions by telephone.
Commissioner Sal Hernandez asked if there were existing permits which were not
filled. The director responded that it appeared that all permits were filled. Chair
Rogers asked if it was common for existing companies to request more permits than
they needed, hedging against the possibility that they may be approved for a lower
number than requested. Director McQuistion stated that in the case of this year’'s
applications both Taxi USA and Checker Cab had made the case for requiring more
revenues to make improvements. He noted that the only means for a franchised
company to increase its revenues was to increase the number of permits or to
increase the amount of the weekily lick.

Commissioner Patel asked the director if there had been any changes to the staff's
budget, noting that Inspector Lawhorn was currently responsible for monitoring over
580 taxicabs and 900 drivers. Director McQuistion responded that there had been no
changes. He stated that the budget process would begin in January for the fiscal year
beginning in July 2012. Chair Rogers asked if revenues from regulation of non-taxi
passenger vehicles were meeting budget projections. Director McQuistion responded
that revenues had not met earlier estimates in the first fiscal year of implementation,
ending June 2011, but that expenses had also been below projections for the
previous year. He noted that there were a number of companies that had not yet
come into compliance with licensing requirements, and these revenues could be
collected before the end of the current fiscal year. He added that a vacant inspector
position was about to be filled. Inspector Lawhorn reminded Commissioners that
hiring someone to fill the vacant inspector position — to be responsible for inspecting
and monitoring liveries and shuttles — would not improve the staff's ability to inspect
and monitor additional taxicabs, if additional permits were approved. He stated that
the quality of taxicabs was dependent on adequate enforcement. Commissioner
Turner stated that the staffing levels to support additional taxicabs were as yet
uncertain, and that the need for more permits was predicated on increased demand
several months in the future. He suggested that a study on taxi-related fees should
be undertaken to determine if revenues could cover part or all of the additional
expenses. The director expressed concern that, while permitting and sometimes
inspection activities were capable of generating revenues through fees, enforcement
of laws was not typically considered to be a fee-based service to the regulated
industries, but was considered to be a public safety responsibility. He noted that 70%
of the department’s budget went to support enforcement. The director stated that he
would look at fees charged in other cities to determine if taxi fees and revenues could
be increased. He noted that fee amounts were prescribed in the ordinance, so it
would be necessary for increases to be approved by the Mayor’s office and the Metro
Council.

Commissioner Turner moved to disapprove the application of Green-lite Cab
Service. Commissioner Hernandez seconded, and the motion passed (4-0).

Commissioner Patel expressed concern about approving any permits while the staff
budget for the next fiscal year was uncertain. Chair Rogers stated that it was also
unclear that the large number of permits being requested was appropriate to meet



anticipated demand. She stated that there was additional risk and uncertainty where
new applicants were concerned, because they had no track record of performance
upon which to base a decision. Commissioner Patel stated that the case made in
November by the Convention and Visitors Bureau for additional permits did not
recognize that there would be a demand for additional taxicabs until March 2013.

Commissioner Turner moved to approve applications for new taxicab company
certificates of public convenience and necessity and applications for additional
taxicab permits, conditional on both of the following requirements being met:

e Metropolitan government approval of the Transportation Licensing
Commission FY2013 budget, sufficient to increase staff to enable regulation
of additional taxicabs; and

e Director to conduct a survey of taxicab fees charged by other cities, and to
provide a report to the Commission on an appropriate fees structure that
could increase revenues to cover all of the additional expenses.

If both of these conditions are met, then the following will be approved:

e 6 additional taxicab permits for Checker Cab — these 6 permits must be filled
with hybrid vehicles;

e 6 additional taxicab permits for Taxi USA of Tennessee, to be distributed
between Allied Cab, Nashville Cab, and 1-800-TAXICAB — these 6 permits
must be filled with hybrid vehicles;

e Certificate(s) approved for Volunteer Taxi, Inc. and/or Green Cab, Inc. — with a
total of 76 permits — the decisions on these two companies to be decided in
July.

Commissioner Patel seconded, and the motion passed (3-1).

APPLICATION FOR WRECKER DRIVER PERMIT: BOBBY CAMPBELL

Director McQuistion reported that Mr. Campbell had held a permit from March 2008
until it expired on December 1. The director noted that his background check report
included a 2011 conviction for theft, a 2003 conviction for 5 counts of theft over $500,
and a 2002 charge for altering a car tag. The director added that Mr. Campbell had
disclosed his arrests, and also brought in a copy of the court judgment on his 2011
charge.

Mr. Campbell appeared with Robert Dunn, representing A. B. Collier Wrecker
Service. Mr. Campbell explained the circumstances behind the 2011 arrest. Mr. Dunn
spoke on his behalf, noting that Mr. Campbell had been driving for the company for a
long time.

Chair Helen Rogers asked Mr. Campbell if he had been driving a wrecker since his
permit expired on December 1. Mr. Campbell replied that he had, and that he did not
know that this would be a problem while his application was pending a Commission
hearing. He apologized. Chair Rogers directed that A. B. Collier owner David Dunn
appear at the January meeting.

Commissioner Curt Wallen moved to approve a permit, restricted to A. B. Collier,
and to place Mr. Campbell on probation until December 1, 2013.



APPLICATION FOR LIVERY COMPANY CERTIFICATE: ACE NASHVILLE LIMO

The Commission considered an application for a livery certificate of public
convenience and necessity submitted by Olusegun Ojo-Daniel, owner of Ace
Nashville Limo. Director McQuistion reported that a previous application had been
disapproved by the Commission in July because Mr. Ojo-Daniel had operated his
livery service without a certificate. The director stated that since July the company
had continued to operate without a certificate, and that Airport records showed that
his 3 vehicles had made 20 pickups at the Airport since August 1. The director
added that Mr. Ojo-Daniel had again appeared before the Commission with his new
application on October 25; but at that meeting had stated that he had a character
witness who was unable to appear, and had also mentioned some citations —
unrelated to his airport trips — that had not yet been disposed in environmental court.
The director stated that the Commission had deferred a decision on the application
until after the environmental court date.

Director McQuistion stated that following a deferral decision at the October meeting
Mr. Ojo-Daniel had complained that the Commission was treating him unfairly by
postponing its decision. The director noted that the environmental court date had
been postponed again, but he recommended proceeding with the application
hearing. He contended that there was ample evidence in the airport reports to
recommend disapproval, and that Mr. Ojo-Daniel clearly wanted to have a decision
on his application. The director provided copies of the minutes from the July,
September and October meetings, as well as reports generated by the Airport’s
automated vehicle identification system.

Mr. Ojo-Daniel appeared. He stated that he had already explained at the October
meeting that he was involved in ministry and used his vehicles for personal use. He
stated that Airport reports showed a few trips each month, but that these were on
personal business. Chair Helen Rogers asked if he was claiming to have gone to
the Airport 20 times since August on personal business; Mr. Ojo-Daniel responded
that he did not know the exact number. He stated that he had been cited by Inspector
Bowling while driving on Briley Parkway with no passengers, and that citations he
had been issued were still pending in environmental court. He stated that he was not
being treated fairly and was upset about Gray Line and others still operating without
a certificate. Commissioner Sal Hernandez asked if he also dropped people off at
the Airport in connection with his ministry; Mr. Ojo-Daniel responded that he did.
Commissioner Hernandez noted that according to the reports, he was using the
departures level. Mr. Ojo-Daniel stated that he used all levels. He stated that
operators should not be charged for going to the departures level, because they were
only to be charged for picking up passengers, not dropping them off. Director
McQuistion noted that on October 28 the Airport counted Mr. Ojo-Daniel’'s Suburban
five times on the departures level, his Lincoln Town Car seven times on the departure
level, and his stretch limousine one time on the departures level: a total of thirteen
trips by three different vehicles on the same day. Mr. Ojo-Daniel stated that he was
provided a monthly report on trips charged by the Airport, but he did not know about
those numbers.

Chair Rogers asked Mr. Ojo-Daniel if he had brought any witnesses concerning his
ministry; he responded that he had not. Chair Rogers asked if he wanted the



Commission to postpone, so that he could bring his witness; Mr. Ojo-Daniel
responded that he did not, because he did not want to have to wait for a decision on
his application. Chair Rogers told Mr. Ojo-Daniel that it was his own statements
about having a character witness — who was not able to appear — that resulted in the
deferral at the October meeting.

Director McQuistion provided copies of Airport records to Mr. Ojo-Daniel and to
Commissioners.



Vehicla: 001

Aecess [D: BMNAOHIO0E4T

Vellala
am
oo
[1[Fs3
a0

Total Trangzacctlons For Day: 4

Wahlelo
om
o
o
Qof

Total Transacctlans for Day: 4

Wehivlw
aal
1]

Totul Trahsasstlony for Day: 2

Wehltle
an1
ol

Talal Trahsacctlans for Daw; 2

Vehicle
a1
Lty

Tadal Transacothans for Day: 2

Vahlch:
P
it
Qi
M
o0
[Huy

Total Trangacetions for Dey: G

Sage 1 ofd

Mashville International Airport - MNAA *’?J,.r”““‘“

Transaciiens by Vehlcle
A Mashvllla Limo [R5
10M204 1 12:00:00 Al 1o 11932071 11:50:50 PM

WKz 30MFK1EZTHFA0ERIT
Yoaor: 2003
Date/Thna
1622011 T217200 AM
120 RERST AM
TR G A
ACH2A0TT J4 56T i

BatelTime
WS T 051350 AM
100 1T AN
10V 10:58:17 A
L5074 1201 2:00 AR

DatefTlitie
10320 §9 24763 Fivl
TAHEMT 1205140 P

Dator Firrme
TOMEIEIN ] G509 AN
1078201 4:53:00 Afd

CataTime
02001 5525 A
I T B6ZE A

DatefTIne
A0 4020 ] 3530 AM
SA20q 1 G 3E2E AM
T T2 F-03:2F AN
G A5 T FoT0a s
AGHAEZD T 1120038 Al
1002641 113207 Add

‘Tranzactlans by Vehicls

{'UL L /ﬁn ole

i e _,,qﬁ'(-’ ,,3/“,/.3: !J!

£y Jhad 7

o r.'ll-:-'/ﬂ:'

— A Ta,a,rr-wr ﬁ‘fr

A (rl.v e n b r’m_{ff
-f_:':l ‘-mmlrm.,ar*.r, -’/.2- 1L

et

ﬂfz:rﬂ - i s
Llecnae Plata: dEH1360

ake: Chevrolet

Fleza
Coparlurues Laval Enfrancs
Alrpart 1
Depariure: Ll Brirznce
Sirpot CHit

Flaza
Departuras Level Epirance
A R
Deparumes Level Cnlrance
Alport Exi

Plaza
[lepadurss Leve] ERtranse
Alrport Exil

Plaza
Nepadurzs Lewod Enlranace
Alrgaort Exil

Plaz:t
Lenartorae Laval Tnlire

Alrport Zxil

Plaza
Prapadd sres Leval Eriraras
Alrport Exil
Dupatines | pve: Entrance
Airporl Cxlt
[epaderas Lovecl Erdrac s
Airnnrt = xit

£ el By

e

115302011 320 P



Wellnle
g
(A
Totel Transauctlons for Day: 2
Vehlele
0
o
a1
on
oGy
ol
Tetal Franaacefiens for Doy G
Vahlcle
nai
a1
()]
07
Totel Tranzacctions for Day: 4
Vehlela
07|
nos
cial
oa:
Tatal Transacctlons for Day; 4
Yahicla
e
aol
Tutal Transaccilons tor Day; 2
Weliiclc
GG
291
Teta| TransaccHan = far oy 2

i. 1 i|" " Vehlel
\{ . y/ iy

Y

!} e)li IIII1I|l

o
o
\ oG

0gG1
o
rape d af Transactlans by Yehleh:

Data/Tima
12011 drD3ad s Ay
V200 AT AN

ke Tlme
I0MHI20 4 2553 Al
1C¥2H2011 B2ocd 1 A%
TWEVE0TT TFR0 AR
TGN 7120 A
W21 4234 PR
IRA2051 5707 PR

CratarThine
1025201 ilels A
WL 1 520060 AM
TINERZ2017F 321555 M
ORIV 12 2dd ol

BalcfTIme
124501 4:43:30 Ak
FRZ2017 AAD20 A
1072452011 Q5 A
WHLAE ¢ G554 A0

OefelTime
TGS 64214 B
1UW2ESE]? G mGT P

Deatal' Tinae
12752011 G009 b
TONETIRA 0030 A

DetalTimea
1GA2BAE01T 2t A
TWERAN Y 413055 Ak
ACE2E201 51251 A
TEH2011 522410 AN
TOA2B201% 21,3449 AM
020 1 1dves s

[laza
Ceparures Lewal Enlisnng
Alrgart Byl

Plaza
Departeres Leval Enfrancs
Alrpcd ExIt
Deparmyes Ceval Cilanca
Airpoc] Eait
Do arburas Lava’ Enfrzning
Airpod Exit

Flias
Mel:2iluwes Luval Entranca
Airport ExIE
Daparh.ras Lave! Fabsnes

" Alrpoe Lt

Plaza
Diops rures Lewsl ZnAnce
Alrpen L Exlr
Depaulures Lovie! Enteanca

Airpart Exif

Pliaza
Carpenenclul Garzge Endrerce

Alrport Exlt
Flaza
Lrpertares Lavsl En‘rence .
Airport Exit Fa
—_. o H, o )|
SEN
Plissia _]| ' :l'-r
Ifl'l.,

Deparlurzs Lowol Endrancs
Adrport Exil
Olapanarae Lewel Epiras g
Alrpor Sxl

Nepaiinos Luwsl Endrarce
\Ir'/

1132011 320 PM

Aircar Exil



1

\ i
_ 201

11|
Total T‘ransntétiu_n-s rEur Iﬁ;; 1|:|_ o
Vehlela
a1
s
Tote! Fransacollons for Day:
Yehlcla
£
ooy
Ly
om
Tetel Trahsacefions for Day: 4
ahlcla
1
unft
|
HUR]
Tatal Traneacetians for Day: 4
Yehlzle
o
ac1
£
il |
Totai Transacclions fer Day: 4
Vehicle
ool
e
om
oal
ne+
an
Total Transacctlans foe Cray: &

"I'otal Tramsacclians for Vehfele: 92

Page d of 4 Transaztions by Wehlcla

T —— L

JIREAME T 124135 P
VEEEOT 1ZA4 P
1902%201 F 22001 7 1°H
1|'}.'2E3.'2ﬂ"|1 A6 PR
Dt TIma
1IR30 7o 3:dd A
AANNZCEF 1 F:Lu 12 Al

Driate Time
P12 S0308 AN
AGE 12007 50521 AR
T3 21T 32700 Fu
1003 2099 559052 Pid

Cato/Tima
TR0 T 45422 A
FED] F a8y al
T1HEN T S 1217 AM
1152011 311508 AN

DatefTlme
T1er@lr 1 1214519 P
11542071 12:60:68 FM
11202011 4507 #hd
12N F 5580 1

Date/Tima
TR0 £:49:24 AM
1173720751 45230 Hibd

I S B 50 A

FHMHEC BredIE A
112019 B37 54 AR
T2 A-E016 A

,
iDesanurzs Level dalraree Sy |l
| fj(:{ ?.;.S

Adrper! EXIL 1
i
Dupartures Level Edlrerce | ]-,"E-JI“
afrpor Exit
Flaza

Desaarilres Leve' E4leanea
Kirpud Exif

Fraza
Legsan lures Cevel Cnliznce
Alrpod EXl
Cepdriuraa Laval Envgney

Alrport Exl

Plozn
Giper sros Leviel Enfrance
Airport Ext
Depsrures Levnl Crirmnee

Alrpoti Exil

Flaza
flepartures Level Enlrance
Llrposd Exit
LDlspartures Lanra! =ntranes
Aracr Exl:

Froza
Croparuros Laval Enfranns
Airpor Ex
Dweparures Lewn] 1pfranes
Allysnt Bl
Departares Leval Exnlznce
Airner Exit

TAR011 320 P



i (2472011 FA2ET PM
11 {M2ASA01 £ 780G P
ooz el 75116 R
Tolal Transacetions for Day: B
Wohlela Pat=Tlna
(Hirs SONEGIEN T SAEEE AR
nnz EE2017 SIS A
ooz e G065 Ak
a02 joieys0d B:11:58 AR
]2 A0v2s ] B G240 A
w2 10f25d20 1 65645 AM
e 1RSI0 3 50:02 AR
i G0 1 5502 AM
Total Transacefons for Day: 4
Welilcle Daske!Tlrme
2 {OVEE201 Y BREEE A
€02 L EEEON BT AM
a2 COEIZ0 1 SRR PM
one TeIGa0] 4 $2:26:04 PM
Total Transacctions for Day: 4
Vohlzle Data/Time
anz FUEFIR0T BLSk T AM
anz FRE R BAar1g Al
Tutsl Transacetiona forpays2 - -
ir-_ “Wohicle o Dalsi TIine
. | ooe O Ei20s 1 20058 Abd
! !|| I lK'Q, \ ooz HORREFEN 11 B2EA5 b
\‘ / fi xfu'n'r*' !!I L2 RO 1 1 5552 AM
. cey 0YEi201 1 Siads Al
"’? - | oz TNER201 T Greistd AM
L e 10FZEENT § G 7230 A
\ ooz Ay 113112 A
] o ANEEEN1T 1134 43 AR
l o0z 105252014 T0GE P
‘ 202 AiZafz 1 22471 P D"“
[ ooz qeieEial s 32550 Phd f
R 1 07011 R EAES P

Total Transaccfiotis Far Day: iz

Faga T of 3 Transdcllons by Vahicle

Airpe] Exit

Sumnarcial Gassga Endiares

M rourl Bt

Flaza
Mepariurcs Leya! EALCANGS
Alrpart Exil
Dzparurey Loy Erfrasc
filrport EXIE
Creoarlure 3 Laval Endrainns
At Exit
Separsres Level Enrabes
}w‘;pm 1.t

flaza
Inparures ' Avel Enfrance
Aigport Ty
Drepurlusas Level Entrancs
Argart Exdl

Plaza
Gepanures Love| Sntenco
Amart Exil

Plazn [l
Daaarsurea Leve, Ef‘ﬂmncalll iﬂ' v
Almort Exit
Twenarres Leves Eqfrance
Airporl Cxl
Degabarea Lavei Lirfrance |
Alrped Exll
Lenurlurys |evel Erdrancs

Airpuel Bt

huad” Departures Leve! Erfranca

WM Al Exit

0 I‘:‘-"}\-‘ Mapartures Leval Eriranea

Aipe 1%t

1132011 320 PM



(B
(RS
062
rpz
[I[EE]
ad:s
005
Total Transecetlons for Doy B
Yahlcla
003
LI
Tofat Transacctions far Day: 2
Wahiclo
[unk]
[HIK)
1114
ik K]

-Tnlt.al Transecotlons for Day: 4

-.J Pt o veitols PR

o
IE?} L oo

Total Tranzaccllena for Day: & -—— . ..

Teta? Transacetlans for Vehlcla; 15

Erand Tefal Trensoctlons: 242

Capyrighs @ 2utd waleieeper Syaloms, [,
[apge G efd

AEE At AR
1GFIGRGT] 455,38 Al
T0AIS201 5 Sisss AN
TWTEEDT 523539 A
TGEAGTA0TT Ba2:31 Ahd
A0 BANT L B AM
A2 Ede1r A

Catai Time
TNRRENT G250 T P
TEAG11 2818 P

DateiTime
10343071 45021 Al
0242011 A:55:07 AN
OEE T BilidZD AN
1242011 BrdGG A

Alrport Exib
CupeAures Laval Enfrance
Adraarg i
Denararcs Luve: Friras s
Alrper Exil
Depar lungs eval Enttzncs
Alrpnrt Exii

Plaza
[leaariuras amc] S il

Mlrpart Exii

Flaiza
Denariuras Leval Cnlranne
Alrport Exil
Copivlares lawal Entrarce

Airours Exit

~ ———a b

— - T ThEfEITITGE
FORERERI ErEE20 AN
/23200 5,28 5 A

Trenaacilens by ¥ahlcle

"~ Plazs
Cuapss 810 Lawel Enlrancs
Agrpuor: Exll

)
l'u'.l'], l o, !

1552011 2220 7M



The director explained that the Airport’'s system counted “hits” from vehicle
transponders registered by receivers positioned at various locations throughout the
Airport. He added that the system used rules built into its software to charge
companies for pick-ups, typically based on dwell time on property. The director stated
that as a result the system did not necessarily charge a trip fee for every time a
vehicle came onto Airport property. The director added that it was not unusual for
operators to try to bypass the system by picking up passengers on the departures
level. Commissioner Sam Patel asked why he should be charged if he drove his
personal car to pick up someone on any level. Director McQuistion stated that he
understood that the operator could provide an alibi to the Airport for any trip; but he
stated that this did not address why anyone would need to take multiple trips to the
Airport on the same day, using three different vehicles. Commissioner Hernandez
asked if there was a way to determine whether Mr. Ojo-Daniel had paid Airport
charges for those trips; director McQuistion responded that he had been told by the
Airport that payment had not been received. Mr. Ojo-Daniel confirmed that he had not
yet paid the charges.

Commissioner Tom Turner moved to disapprove the application. Commissioner
Sam Patel seconded and the motion passed (4-0).

COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2012

Director McQuistion presented a schedule for the 2012 meetings of the Commission.
Following discussion, Chair Helen Rogers asked director McQuistion to check with
all Commission members and the facility manager to determine if moving the
meetings to Thursdays would be possible. She stated that the issue would be
discussed at the January 24 meeting.

OTHER BUSINESS:

Director McQuistion stated that Mike Martin had submitted an application to transfer
the emergency wrecker license and zone currently operated by Brown's Wrecker
Service, and that the public hearing would be scheduled for the January meeting.

There was no further business, and the meeting was adjourned.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Brian E. McQuistion Helen S. Rogers
Director-Executive Secretary Chair



	Minutes of 
	December 20, 2011

